
    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 1 of 12 

 

 

 

MINUTES 

WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

August 2, 2016 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – WILKES COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 2016 EDWARD BYRNE 

MEMORIAL ASSISTANCE (JAG) GRANT FUNDING - Chairman Eddie Settle declared 

the Public Hearing open regarding the 2016 JAG Grant for Wilkes County Sheriff’s Office at 

10:01 A.M. on Tuesday, August 2, 2016 with the following members present:  Chairman Eddie 

Settle, Commissioner Keith Elmore, Commissioner Gary D. Blevins, and Commissioner David 

Gambill. 

 

Also present were Tony Triplett, County Attorney; John Yates, County Manager; Sheriff Chris 

Shew; and Sarah Call, Clerk to the Board. 

 

Chairman Settle asked if anyone would like to speak regarding the proposed JAG Grant Funding.  

Hearing no comments on the proposed Grant for the Wilkes County Sheriff’s Office, Chairman 

Eddie Settle declared the Public Hearing closed for the JAG Grant Funding request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FROM C-S TO R-20A – 1024 ELK SPUR 

STREET, EDWARDS TOWNSHIP – Chairman Eddie Settle declared the Public Hearing open 

regarding the Rezoning request from C-S (Community Shopping) to R-20A (Residential-

Agriculture) for property located at 1024 Elk Spur Street, Elkin, NC at 10:02 A.M. on Tuesday, 

August 2, 2016 with the following members present:  Chairman Eddie Settle, Commissioner 

Keith Elmore, Commissioner Gary D. Blevins, and Commissioner David Gambill. 

 

Also present were Tony Triplett, County Attorney; John Yates, County Manager; Eddie Barnes, 

Director Planning Department; and Sarah Call, Clerk to the Board. 

 

Chairman Settle asked if anyone would like to speak regarding the proposed Rezoning Request 

from C-S to R-20A for property located at 1024 Elk Spur Street.  Hearing no comments on the 

proposed Rezoning request from C-S to R-20A, Chairman Eddie Settle declared the Public 

Hearing closed for the Rezoning request. 

 

Planning Director Eddie Barnes stated this property is currently owned by Lifeline Pregnancy 

Help Center, Inc. who wants to rezone 0.45 acres from Community Shopping to Residential-

Agriculture.  This will allow the property to be used for residential purposes, he added.  Mr. 

Barnes said it is currently in a mixed zoning district.  He added all the notification standards have 

been met and have not received any negative comment.  Commissioner Elmore asked if the 

Planning Board had already approved this.  Mr. Barnes replied yes, they heard this request on 

June 28, 2016 and unanimously recommend it to this Board for a Public Hearing to be set and 

possible approval.  Commissioner Blevins stated it is going from a business to a house.  Mr. 

Barnes replied yes.  Chairman Settle added it is a house and they have been there several years.  

 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 2 of 12 

 

 

 

The Wilkes County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, August 2, 2016 at 10:04 A.M. 

with the following members present:  Chairman Eddie Settle, Commissioner Keith Elmore, 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins, and Commissioner David Gambill.  

 

Also present for the meeting were Tony Triplett, County Attorney; John Yates, County Manager; 

and Sarah Call, Clerk to the Board. 

 

Chairman Eddie Settle welcomed everyone to the meeting.   

 

INVOCATION – Commissioner David Gambill led the Invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Chairman Eddie Settle led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Chairman Settle said that Vice Chairman Greg Minton had to go to Raleigh today to attend 

mandatory training for his job with Wilkes Community College which is the reason he is not at 

the Board meeting.  

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Motion was made by Commissioner Keith Elmore, seconded by 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins and unanimously adopted to approve the Minutes of the Board 

meeting held on July 5, 2016. 

 

HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS – WILKES COUNTY NURSING 

HOME COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR LONG TERM CARE – BOARD 

APPOINTMENTS –   Chairman Eddie Settle recognized Stevie John, Regional Ombudsman.  

Ms. John thanked the Board and stated she is the new Ombudsman with the High Country Area 

on Aging.  She said the Ombudsman program covers 7 counties and 26 long term care facilities, 

which includes 3 skilled facilities and 4 adult care homes in Wilkes.   The newest is Rose Glenn 

Manner which has 12 residents and an open house is planned for September, she added.  Ms. 

John said in Wilkes there is a Community Advisory Committee which has 3 current members on 

the Adult Care Home Advisory Committee with 2 vacancies.  She added there are 2 members on 

the Nursing Home Committee with 4 vacancies.  Ms. John stated she is asking for Ms. Peggy 

Elledge and Ms. Susan Bachmeire to be appointed to the Wilkes County Nursing Home 

Community Advisory Committee by the Board for an initial one-year term.  

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to approve the appointments of Ms. Peggy 

Elledge and Ms. Susan Bachmeier to serve on the Wilkes County Nursing Home Community 

Advisory Committee for Long Term Care for 1-year terms, as presented.  The motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously approved. 

 

Commissioner Blevins said the Board appreciates what they do, and these positions can be very 

hard to fill.  Ms. John agreed and said it is very much needed, they do a great job.  They have a 

presence and voice in the facilities as well as educate the community which she cannot provide.  

Chairman Settle stated a few more volunteers are needed.  Ms. John agreed and said if the Board 

knows of anyone to please send them her way, they need two more on each Committee in 

Wilkes.   



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 3 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 TAX DEPARTMENT: 

 

1. TAX RELEASES – Alex Hamilton, Tax Administrator, asked the Board to 

approve tax releases in the amount of $9,160.68, these are due to bankruptcy and/or being 

deceased.  Commissioner Elmore asked how the tax office becomes aware that someone is 

deceased.  Mr. Hamilton replied they use a service called Acu-rent and they normally discover 

someone is deceased when they are going after delinquent taxes.  He added most of these are old 

vehicles tax bills.  Commissioner Elmore asked when someone passes away and the spouse or 

family member does not have anything changed at the tax office what happens.  Mr. Hamilton 

said sometimes the heirs will come in and request this to be changed.  He noted the tax 

department also researches the elderly exemption and sometimes they catch people receiving the 

elderly exemption after the person was deceased that should not have it and they collect the full 

amount due.  Mr. Hamilton added Real Estate is never included on the releases, these taxes do 

not go away and are not released, only personal property.     

 

Commissioner David Gambill made a motion to approve the tax releases as presented.  The 

motion was seconded by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins and unanimously approved.  

 

A detailed listing of tax releases is maintained in the Wilkes County Tax Administrator’s office. 

 

 2. TAX SETTLEMENT – TAX YEAR 2015 – Alex Hamilton, Tax Administrator, 

stated N.C.G.S.  §105-373 requires the Tax Collector to make settlement for the 2015 taxes as 

follows: 

 

  Owed   Paid   Rate 

Real Estate $33,779,751.98 $32,508,852.44 95.88% 

Personal $ 4,330,686.25 $ 4,155,445.66 95.84% 

 

Total  $38,110,438.23 $36,664,297.99 95.87    

  

Mr. Hamilton stated this is a two-tenths percent increase over the previous year which equals 

approximately $600,000.00.  He added these amounts do not include the collections on motor 

vehicles.   

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to accept the 2015 Tax Settlement from Alex 

Hamilton, Wilkes County Tax Administrator, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously approved. 

 

3. CHARGE TAX ADMINISTRATOR/COLLECTOR WITH COLLECTION 

OF 2016 REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES – Alex Hamilton, Tax 

Administrator, stated N.C.G.S. §105-321 requires that the Board charge the Tax 

Administrator/Collector with the collection of the 2016 real and personal property taxes.  He 

added the bills went out in the mail today.  Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes are as 

follows: 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 4 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 2016 Real Estate    $33,267,444.46 

 2016 Personal Property   $ 2,756,240.70 

 

 Total      $36,023,685.16 

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to charge Alex Hamilton, Wilkes County Tax 

Administrator, with the collection of the 2016 real and personal property taxes as presented.  The 

motion was seconded by Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously approved. 

 

WILKES EMS – FRANCHISE AGREEMENT – Chairman Settle welcomed and recognized 

Eric Morrison, EMS Director.  Mr. Morrison said he serves two roles, one which is the Director 

of Wilkes County EMS, and the second is to also be the Wilkes EMS System Director.  He 

added in the role of System Director he is here to present the initial approval for the Wilkes 

County EMS franchise to Wilkes County EMS.  Mr. Morrison stated there is a Franchise 

Ordinance that has been in place for 14 years and this will renew this and also make sure the 

application is current.  He added they expect to bring the Wilkes County Rescue Squad’s 

application to the next meeting. 

 

County Attorney Tony Triplett stated there is an unusual procedure for franchise agreements and 

it has to be approved by two separate votes of the Board at two separate meetings.  He added it is 

before the Board today for the first consideration or the first vote can wait and they can answer 

any questions.  This is a franchise renewal, he noted.  Mr. Triplett said the Franchise Ordinance 

was approved in 2002 at that time franchises were awarded to Wilkes EMS and Wilkes Rescue 

Squad.  Mr. Triplett stated the Rescue Squad is working on their application and it should be 

ready for the first vote at the next Board meeting.  He added the Franchise Ordinance is also 

being reviewed at this time.  The application Mr. Morrison has presented meets all the conditions 

of the 2002 Franchise Ordinance, he noted.  Mr. Morrison said the renewal is for 5-years. 

 

Chairman Settle asked if this has been renewed since 2002.  Mr. Triplett replied no, it was an 

oversight, and after the second vote it will be renewed.  Commissioner Elmore asked if there 

have been any changes since the original.  Mr. Morrison replied no, the original franchise was 

fairly straight forward.  He added they are reviewing the 2002 Ordinance to make sure it reflects 

what is in the best interest of the community as well as best practices.  Mr. Morrison said they 

will provide guidance to the Board about the Ordinance to help the Board set expectations and 

current standards are reflected.  

 

Commissioner Blevins stated the call volume in the application has been flat for the past 4 years.  

Commissioner Gambill added that is surprising to him, as it seems, they have a lot of calls.  

Commissioner Blevins said there were lots of calls during the severe storm and power outages 

the County had a few weeks ago and they did a great job.  Mr. Morrison stated he cannot say 

enough good things about Sheriff Shew and the dispatch center and the great job they did.  He 

said the Communications Center was off-line for a little while and the staff really stepped up.  

They were dispatching ambulances with cell phones to make sure the folks that called for help 

received help, he added.  Mr. Morrison said they brought in extra help all weekend long, his staff 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 5 of 12 

 

 

 

really worked hard to make sure everyone was taken care of.  Commissioner Blevins added he 

spoke to many firemen that worked all night cutting trees out of roads and assisting folks in their 

community, a big thank you to all of them.  Mr. Morrison agreed and said the men and women 

that volunteer in this community absolutely deserve a huge debt of gratitude for what they do on 

their own time.  He added they help the EMS tremendously. 

         

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to approve the Wilkes County EMS Franchise 

Application Agreement for the first approval, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner David Gambill and unanimously approved. 

 

FIRE MARSHAL – APPROVAL OF PERMIT FOR FIREWORK DISPLAY – Chairman 

Eddie Settle recognized Fire Marshal Kevin Bounds.  Mr. Bounds said they received a permit 

request for a display to be held at Wilkes Community College for Carolina West’s Anniversary 

Celebration on August 27, 2016.  He said Wilkes Community College has applied to the State for 

a pyrotechnics permit, since the event is being held on State of North Carolina property.  Mr. 

Bounds added they have received approval from the State for this event.  He stated the Wilkes 

County Board of Commissioners will also need to approve the fireworks permit, which will be 

issued by the County. 

  

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to approve the Firework Display Permit 

Application for Wilkes Community College, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Keith Elmore and passed unanimously. 

  

PLANNING DEPARTMENT: 

 

  a. REZONING REQUEST – 1024 ELK SPUR STREET, EDWARDS 

TOWNSHIP – Mr. Barnes stated during regular session on June 27, 2016 the Wilkes Joint 

Planning Board reviewed a request from Lifeline Pregnancy Help Center, Inc. to rezone 0.45 

acre parcel located at 1024 Elk Spur Street, Elkin, NC.  The request is to rezone the property 

from Community Shopping (C-S) to Residential-Agriculture (R-20A).  He added the Wilkes 

Joint Planning Board approved and recommends this request.  A public hearing has been heard 

earlier with no opposition, the notification period has been met, and now it is for the Boards 

consideration, he noted.  

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to approve the rezoning request for Lifeline 

Pregnancy Help Center, Inc. for property located at 1024 Elk Spur Street, Elkin, Wilkes County, 

North Carolina, which is currently zoned C-S (Community-Shopping) to R-20A (Residential-

Agriculture), as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner David Gambill and 

unanimously approved. 

 

b. REZONING REQUEST – STATEMENT OF REASONABLENESS – County 

Attorney Tony Triplett said the Statement of Reasonableness is a statutory requirement that must 

accompany a rezoning by the County Commissioners.  He said the courts have required that it 

has to be approved separately from the rezoning itself.  The below Statement of Reasonableness 

must be part of the meeting record, he added.   



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 

 

N.C.G.S. §153A-341 STATEMENT BY  

WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS APPROVING RE-ZONING OF 

LIFELINE PREGNANCY HELP CENTER, INC. PROPERTY IN EDWARDS TOWNSHIP, 

WILKES COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, FROM C-S (COMMUNITY SHOPPING) TO R-20A 

(RESIDENTIAL-AGRICULTURAL)  

 

 THE WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS has on this date adopted a 

zoning amendment, approving the recommendation of the Wilkes Joint Planning Board that the 

property owned by Lifeline Pregnancy Help Center, Inc., in Edwards Township, Wilkes County, 

North Carolina, located in West End Elkin at 1024 Elk Spur Street, Elkin, NC, on the west side of 

Elk Spur Street, consisting of 0.450 acres, more or less, on the records of the Wilkes County Tax 

Mapping Office, being identified thereon as Parcel ID #0600653, and being more fully described 

in that Deed recorded in Book 885, Page 459, Wilkes County Registry, which is currently zoned 

C-S (Community Shopping), be re-zoned to R-20A (Residential-Agricultural). 

 

The Board of Commissioners agrees with the findings of the Wilkes Joint Planning Board that 

the only structure on the property is a residential structure which has been used in recent years 

as the location for Lifeline Pregnancy Help Center, Inc., but which used to be a private 

residence and used to be zoned residential; that the planned purchaser of the property wishes to 

return its use to a private residence; and that all adjoining and other property in this area to the 

east, and across Elk Spur Street to the east, including property in both Wilkes and Surry 

Counties (Town of Elkin), is zoned residential.  Accordingly, the Board of Commissioners finds, 

pursuant to G.S. §153A-341, that although Wilkes County has not officially adopted a 

comprehensive zoning plan, the proposed re-zoning in this case from C-S (Community Shopping) 

to R-20A (Residential-Agricultural) is consistent with other zoning requirements currently in 

place in the area affected by the re-zoning and is further consistent with the goals and purposes 

of the Wilkes County Zoning Ordinance and with the existing uses of the property in the 

surrounding area and district.  The Board of Commissioners further finds, for the above stated 

reasons, that the proposed re-zoning is reasonable and in the public interest.   

 

ADOPTED this the 2nd day of August, 2016. 
 
WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

ATTEST: 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Sarah Call, Clerk    Eddie Settle, Chairman 

Wilkes County Board of Commissioners 

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to adopt the N.C.G.S. §153A-341 Statement by 

Wilkes County Board of Commissioners Approving Re-zoning of the Lifeline Pregnancy Help 

Center, Inc. for property located at 1024 Elk Spur Street, Elkin, Wilkes County, North Carolina, 

which is currently zoned C-S (Community-Shopping) to R-20A (Residential-Agriculture), as 

presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously 

approved. 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 7 of 12 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Blevins stated he wanted to mention an issue at this time because Eddie Barnes is 

over this department.  He said there has been a theft of 20 Street Signs that are County property 

that happen last Wednesday night.  This is a public safety concern and a fairly large tax payer’s 

expense to replace, he added.  Commissioner Blevins said they wanted to make the community 

aware that there was a significant number of street signs stolen in a specific area and if anyone 

has any information of where they may be or how they can get them back.  He added it would 

save the County $2,000 to $3,000 to replace them.  Mr. Barnes said all of these were in the 

Moravian Falls Country Club area.  Commissioner Blevins stated they would like to have all the 

street signs back.  Mr. Barnes stated this seems to happen in the summer and they have a rash of 

these in one area.  He added this is a large expense to the County and they will continue to work 

to get these up.        

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SALE OF PROPERTY – County Attorney, Tony Triplett said 

this is a continuation from the last meeting which is a typical sale of county property that was 

foreclosed upon for taxes.  He said Mr. Randy Chatham expressed interest, submitted a bid, the 

Board authorized the bid be advertised and there were no upset bids.  Mr. Triplett said if the 

Board approved the Resolution that approves the sale of the property.  Commissioner Gambill 

asked the location of the property.  Mr. Triplett replied Russell Gap Road and contains 0.325 

acres.   

  

Commissioner Keith Elmore made a motion to approve the Resolution Authorizing Sale of Real 

Property, as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner David Gambill and 

unanimously approved. 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING SALE 

OF REAL PROPERTY 

 

WHEREAS, the Wilkes County Board of Commissioners at its regular meeting of June 

21, 2016, authorized advertisement for sale of a tract of land owned by Wilkes County 

(hereinafter “the County”) located in Boomer Township, Wilkes County, North Carolina, 

consisting of 0.325 acres, more or less, the same having been acquired by the County under 

Commissioner’s Deed dated November 6, 2014, as recorded at Book 1198, Page 276, Wilkes 

County Registry, pursuant to a tax foreclosure sale in the action entitled, “Wilkes County v. 

Pamela Carol Barker, et al.,” File No. 13 CVD 1029, Wilkes County Clerk of Superior Court’s 

Office, and being identified on the records of the Wilkes County Tax Mapping office as PIN 

#3834-59-9223, Parcel ID No. 0300163;  

 

AND WHEREAS, said sale is by negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bid pursuant 

to G.S. §160A-269; and 

 

AND WHEREAS, the County has received an offer from Randy Chatham of Moravian 

Falls, North Carolina, in the amount of $1,500.00 plus Deed preparation and recording costs; 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 8 of 12 

 

 

 

 

AND WHEREAS, said offer was advertised in the Wilkes Journal-Patriot on June 24, 

2016, as required under G.S. §160A-269; 

 

 AND WHEREAS, no upset bids have been received, and the time has expired in which an 

additional upset bid may be submitted; 

 

AND WHEREAS, the Wilkes County Board of Commissioners desires to accept said bid 

of $1,500.00 plus Deed preparation and recording costs, and desires to authorize sale of the 

property pursuant to said bid; 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to G.S. §160A-269, that the bid of 

$1,500.00 plus Deed preparation and recording costs received from Randy Chatham of 

Moravian Falls, North Carolina, is hereby approved, and upon payment of said purchase price, 

a Special Warranty Deed shall be executed by the County and conveyed to Randy Chatham for 

the above referenced property. 

 

 This the 2nd day of August, 2016. 

       WILKES COUNTY 

     By: ________________________________ 

             Eddie Settle, Chairman, 

ATTEST:            Wilkes County Board of Commissioners 

_________________________ 

Sarah D. Call, Clerk    

 

NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ANNUAL 

CONFERENCE – DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE – Chairman Eddie Settle 

stated a voting delegate needs to be assigned and Commissioner Keith Elmore has said he would 

be willing to do this.  

 

Motion was made by Commissioner David Gambill to appoint Commissioner Keith Elmore as 

the designated voting delegate for the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners 

Annual Conference as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins 

and passed unanimously. 

 

ROAD PETITION – SR 2531 TOWN & COUNTRY DRIVE – County Manager John Yates 

stated the Department of Transportation recently received a petition requesting consideration of 

the addition/extension of SR 2531 Town & Country Drive, located off SR 2467 (Country Club 

Road) in the Lithia Ridge community to the State Maintenance system.  He added the 

Commissioners have to pass a resolution on form SR-2 so this road can be added to the State 

Maintenance System. 

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Keith Elmore, seconded by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins 

and unanimously adopted to approve the Road Petition Resolution SR-2 as presented and 

requested. 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 9 of 12 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL SRF CONSTRUCTION LOAN APPLICATION - County Manager John Yates 

said Mike Acquesta could not attend today due to a death in his family.  Mr. Yates stated this is 

approval of the County’s portion of the proposed loan as part of the SRF Loan Application, with 

Wilkes County’s loan amount being $14,350,100.00.  He said this is to request approval of the 

loan application to be submitted to the SRF.  Commissioner Elmore asked if this is only to 

increase the loan amount.  Mr. Yates replied yes, the loan amount is being increased based on the 

numbers received from Garney.  Commissioner Elmore stated this does not obligate the County 

to anything at this point just the ability to borrow this amount.  County Attorney, Tony Triplett 

agreed and said that is correct.  Mr. Yates stated this is so the SRF will designate the money.  Mr. 

Triplett added the next process will require LGC approval, this originally had a June 30, 2016 

deadline and his understanding is this has been extended until the end of September, or 90-days.  

He added the County is only applying, if nothing happens it stops, and if it does the Board would 

have to approve to move forward.       

 

Commissioner Keith Elmore made a motion to approve the SRF Construction Loan Application 

for Wilkes County in the amount of $14,350,100.00 for the W. Kerr Scott Raw Water Project, as 

presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner David Gambill and unanimously 

approved. 

 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES UPDATE – Chairman Eddie Settle recognized 

Department of Social Services Director John Blevins.  Mr. Blevins said he wanted to provide a 

short update for the Board for June.  He briefly went over the monthly caseload report, Foster 

Care financial report, Adoption Services financial report, Child Development and Subsidized 

Child Care financial report.  Commissioner Gary D. Blevins asked if they underspend for the 

child care does the money carry over to next year.  Mr. John Blevins replied no they try to spend 

as close to 100% of the funds as possible.  He added it is a balancing act and they keep a very 

close watch on this, because they want to keep it as close to 100% used without going over for 

the entire year.  Commissioner Blevins said this past year with the infant rate increase from the 

State it messed this up for the County.  Mr. Blevins agreed and said it put them over 100% for a 

while in child care when this happen and this is what created the waiting list.  He added at the 

end of the year the State did give them additional money from underspending counties to make 

up the difference.  They want to use all of the funds and provide daycare to as many children as 

they can without going over what is allocated, he said.  Commissioner Blevins stated there is a 

real impact to the community when there is a waiting list for child care, there are kids that need 

to be in daycare for many reasons and can’t due to this change.  He stated the Board needs to do 

as much as they can to make sure the kids in the community that need daycare get it.  Mr. 

Blevins agreed and added it helps with the CPS investigations and also helps folks go to work.   

 

Commissioner Elmore asked how the State budgets for daycare in the counties.  Mr. Blevins 

replied it is based on prior years use and a few other factors.  Commissioner Elmore said if there 

is a waiting list this year it could help next year’s allocation.  Mr. Blevins replied that it could 

impact the following year.  He added they also look at rates, the number of daycares within a 

county, and the spending rates plus other factors.  He said these funds have slowly been 

contracting over the years from the State.  Commissioner Blevins added taking it out on the kids 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 10 of 12 

 

 

 

is a bad idea.  Mr. Blevins said as the economy bumps up and improves the need will become 

greater.  He said they hear folks already saying they can’t go to work because they do not have 

daycare for their kids.        

 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins stated last year Mr. Blevins had to come before the Board and 

ask for more money for the Foster Children program shortly after he came to Wilkes.  He added 

this year DSS had done a good job and come in under budget and he wanted to recognize this 

accomplishment.  Commissioner Blevins noted every program in this report is under budget for 

every month which is a good accomplishment.  He stated they do not believe this is because 

anyone is being neglected, but because they are running his department very efficiently.      

 

Mr. Blevins also went through the CPS Foster Care monthly reports for June.  Commissioner 

Gambill stated they had a great month for the TPR/ Relinquishments completed, this is 

impressive for one month.  Mr. Blevins agreed and added they hope to keep this going, this is 

permanency for a child.  Commissioner Gambill said that is important and they are very happy to 

see this increasing.  Commissioner Gambill asked about the placements of kids inside Wilkes 

County, it seems to have increased some.  Mr. Blevins agreed but stated when they have over 

200 Foster Children and only 30 Foster Homes in Wilkes, this is hard to achieve.  He added they 

did have 51 Kinship/Relative Placements which helps a great deal and they are grateful for as 

they hope this number will keep increasing as well.   

 

Mr. Blevins briefly went over the Foster/Adoptive Recruitment Plan for June and July and stated 

that an anonymous donor is paying for a months’ worth of 30 second ads promoting the need for 

foster homes on 3WC in July.  He stated this was great and the donor is thinking about 

continuing this.  It is awesome that someone in the community stepped up and did this, they are 

very appreciative and thankful for this individual, he added. 

 

Mr. Blevins said the next item in the packets is a monitoring report from the State.  He stated this 

is a fiscal report in which they came in and looked at the period of October 2015 to January 

2016.  Mr. Blevins added this is a review of all the fiscal aspects of DSS to include billing, 

salary, fringe benefits, general administrative costs, and purchased services.  The conclusion was 

that no adjustments were needed, he noted. He said Joyce Blackburn handles this and does a 

great job.   

 

Mr. Blevins stated the last item is an unfunded mandate they have received after the budget was 

approved.  He said this is for a temporary financial assistance for facilities licensed to accept 

State-County special assistance payments and the County has to pay ½ of it.  Mr. Blevins said it 

will terminate on June 30, 2017 or until the State funds are depleted.  He said this is being 

reviewed and by April 17, 2017 the General Assembly is to see if this will continue on a more 

permeant basis.  Mr. Blevins noted the last page shows how this will impact the County and what 

it will cost to fund this.  He said they have 150 SA cases, ½ of the cost is $17 per month, if it 

runs the entire period through June that totals (150 x 17) $2,550 x 9 months will cost the County 

a total of $22,950.  He said this was not planned for in the budget, but they do not have to ask for 

more money, DSS has enough to cover it, although it is County money they had not allowed for 

or expected.  Commissioner Gary D. Blevins stated basically rather than doing Medicaid 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 

expansion this is just forcing the County and Citizens to pay for it.  Mr. John Blevins replied that 

is a good way to say it.  Commissioner Elmore asked if this was just placed in the budget passed 

by the State and they heard nothing about it.  Mr. Blevins replied that is correct.  Chairman Settle 

added they heard nothing about it from the Association either.  Mr. Yates said it was very quietly 

added.  Commissioner Blevins said it needed to be mentioned next week during the conference.  

Mr. Blevins said they had no knowledge of it until it was passed.  Commissioner Elmore said 

that is irresponsible. Commissioner Blevins added lots of the temporary items become 

permanent.  Chairman Settle stated it is like the lottery funds they keep taken more of it back and 

keeping it and it does not come back to the counties.              

 

The Board thanked Mr. Blevins for his update. 

 

OLD BUSINESS – WILKES COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 2016 EDWARD BYRNE 

MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE (JAG) GRANT – Chairman Eddie Settle welcomed 

Sheriff Chris Shew.  Sheriff Shew said a public hearing was held earlier in regards to this fully 

funded grant of $10,928.00 with no match required.  He noted they intend to buy a tactical bomb 

tech kit with the grant funds.  The request is now for consideration by the Board, he added. 

 

Motion was made by Commissioner David Gambill to approve the 2016 Edward Byrne 

Memorial Justice Assistance (JAG) Grant in the amount of $10,928.00 to purchase a tactical 

bomb kit, as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins and passed 

unanimously. 

 

Chairman Settle asked with all that is going on in the country have they saw any changes in 

attitudes in Wilkes County.  Sheriff Shew replied he has not actually they have saw better 

attitudes in this County and lots of support from the community.  He said the citizens are 

showing them lots of support and telling the deputies and officers how much they appreciate 

them, he hears it everywhere he goes.  Sheriff Shew said he feels very good about this 

community.  Chairman Settle said he was in a restaurant recently and three deputies where there 

and he and many others were lined up to buy their lunch for them.  He was very happy to see this 

and hopes it will continue.  Sheriff Shew said they are very appreciative.   

 

NEW BUSINESS – Commissioner Gambill said he would like to look into a County 

appreciation day for Firemen, First Responders, Law Enforcement and their families.  He would 

like to see the County and others step up to show appreciation and thank them for what they do.  

Commissioner Gambill said he would like to discuss this and look at a day to do this.  

Commissioner Blevins said they play a vital role in maintaining law and order in this County and 

it is a tough job.  Sheriff Shew added most of the citizens here realize they cannot hold every law 

enforcement officer accountable for the incidents that had happen in the past few years.  He said 

it does reflect on them when something bad happens, but they all cannot be held accountable for 

it, and this is realized here.  Chairman Settle stated the Board is very appreciative for the job they 

do and there is no disgrace in Wilkes County.  Sheriff Shew replied they appreciate the support 

from the Board. 

 



    MINUTES 

    August 2, 2016 

    Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gambill stated he would like a committee to be formed that can figure out a time 

when most of the Firemen, First Responders, Law Enforcement and their families could attend.  

He would like to provide a meal and maybe some entertainment.  The Board discussed this 

briefly as well as possible locations, dates, and the number of members and families that may 

attend.  Commissioner Gambill said he is thankful for law enforcement and firemen, and would 

like to show them they are appreciated.  The Board agreed they are thankful and appreciative for 

all the firemen, law enforcement, and first responders in Wilkes and would like to do something 

for them. 

 

NEW BUSINESS – Commissioner Blevins said he would like to commend the School Board for 

their efforts to litigate the settlement amount for the fine they received from the State Retirement.  

He added the article in the paper was very good and informative.  Commissioner Blevins said he 

would like to see them win this and get this over-turned, as the County will obviously have to 

absorb the cost of the settlement if they lose.  

 

CLOSED SESSION – Commissioner David Gambill made a motion to go into Closed Session 

under Section 143-318.11(a)(4) of the North Carolina General Statutes to discuss matters relating 

to the location or expansion of business in Wilkes County.  The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously approved.  

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins, seconded by Commissioner David 

Gambill and by unanimous vote adopted to adjourn back into regular session.  No action was 

taken in the closed session. 

 

NEW BUSINESS – County Attorney Tony Triplett stated North Carolina General Statutes 

§143-318.11(a)(3) requires that the terms of any settlement that has been considered by a public 

body with respect to a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure 

in which it is involved be reported to the public body and entered into its minutes.  By a Release 

of all Claims executed by the claimant Geneva Vicki Poole of Wilkes County, North Carolina, 

under date of June 27, 2016, her claim concerning an alleged violation of the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 by an employee of the Wilkes County Health 

Department on or about October 15, 2015, was settled by payment of the sum of $7,500.00 to 

Ms. Poole, upon condition of no admission of any liability or fault on the part of Wilkes County. 

 

ADJOURN - Motion was made by Commissioner Keith Elmore, seconded by Commissioner 

Gary D. Blevins and by unanimous vote adopted to adjourn the meeting of the Wilkes County 

Board of Commissioners at 11:59 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

Sarah D. Call, Clerk                                 Eddie Settle, Chairman 

 

WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Approved:                      


